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          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Good

          3  afternoon, ladies and gentlemen, and I am Councilman

          4  Hiram Monserrate, Chair of the Committee on Veterans

          5  for the City Council.

          6                 Today we will, first of all, let me

          7  welcome you all to today's hearing, and welcome my

          8  colleagues.  Council Member Tony Avella from Queens

          9  to my left, and Council Member Nelson from Kings

         10  County, and I, of course, am from the beautiful

         11  borough of Queens, gateway to U.S.A., right Tony?

         12                 Today we are going to take a second

         13  look at two bills, both of which I introduced, and

         14  were a subject of a hearing last December 2005,

         15  Introduction Number 232, which would require that

         16  annual notices about certain property tax exemptions

         17  be included on tax bills.  The tax man cometh, and

         18  Intro. Number 233, which would make changes to the

         19  Veterans' Advisory Board for the City of New York.

         20                 When I originally sponsored Intro.

         21  Number 232 last year, my intent was to ensure that

         22  the Department of Finance include information about

         23  property tax exemption for Veterans and Gold Star

         24  Parents on property tax bills.

         25                 Since that time, Intro. Number 232
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          2  has been expanded so as to include people with

          3  disabilities, senior citizens, and those who qualify

          4  for the School Tax Relief exemption, so that also

          5  that they will receive such notices.

          6                 I am confident that this disclosure

          7  will help many New Yorkers, probably at least a

          8  couple of hundred thousand who may not be aware that

          9  their tax exemptions exist, and I am pleased that

         10  this idea came about as the result and hard work of

         11  this Committee.

         12                 I want to thank the outgoing, but

         13  still here, General Counsel to the Committee,

         14  Jonathan Ettricks for his fine work on this, and

         15  Perry Stiener (phonetic) who used to be with this

         16  Committee, thank them both for their work.

         17                 This Committee was newly formed last

         18  year, so it was a work in progress and, obviously,

         19  the diligence of the staff had a lot to do with the

         20  successes that we had, and the successes that we

         21  will be building upon.

         22                 Intro. Number 233 requires that the

         23  Veterans' Advisory Board, which is established by

         24  the City Charter meet at least quarterly, keep a

         25  record of their deliberations, determine its own
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          2  rules of procedure, and submit an annual report to

          3  the Mayor, and to the City Council.  These measures

          4  are designed to improve the Board's operation, and

          5  to promote greater accountability to the Mayor, to

          6  the City Council, and most importantly, to the

          7  Veterans in this City, on whose behalf the Board is

          8  supposed to serve.

          9                 I know that the Administration is

         10  testifying today, and I am confident that they will

         11  be supportive of both Intro. Numbers 233 and 232.

         12                 I also anticipate that this Committee

         13  will vote on both bills at our next hearing, which

         14  is scheduled for April the 28th, at one o'clock in

         15  Chambers.

         16                 Before I invite the representatives

         17  of the Administration to testify, and since I know

         18  that not everyone sticks around to the end of the

         19  hearing, let me announce that as important as

         20  today's hearing is, and it is extremely important,

         21  our April 28th hearing will be very important, and

         22  we are calling upon all Veterans in the City of New

         23  York to come to City Hall on April the 28th at 1

         24  P.M.  We are going to be discussing the needs of

         25  veterans and what the City should be doing.
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          2                 Last year, I sponsored an initiative

          3  that made it right up until the end of the Budget

          4  axe, but the Budget axe got us at the end, regarding

          5  an initiative that would have provided millions of

          6  dollars from city financing to veterans

          7  organizations and institutions to serve our veteran

          8  community, now more than ever, with returning vets

          9  coming back from Iraq, we know that the City needs

         10  to do more because the Federal government is not

         11  doing enough, and at the end of the day, our City

         12  should be ensuring that instead of finger pointing

         13  to the lack of response by the Federal and State

         14  government, that we are now going to have to take

         15  some of the responsibility on for the hundreds of

         16  thousands of New Yorkers that have served this

         17  Nation with distinction.

         18                 So, please be here April the 28th at

         19  one o'clock and tell all the vets and families of

         20  vets we want a packed house. That will be April the

         21  28th at 1 P.M.

         22                 Let me move forward with today's

         23  testimony.  We will be hearing from representatives

         24  from the Administration.

         25                 We are going to be calling Mr. Sam
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          2  Miller from the New York City Department of Finance.

          3    We are also going to be inviting Clarice Joynes

          4  the Executive Director of MOVA, please join the

          5  panel.  The Executive Director Joynes is a person

          6  who has been here many times, and we appreciate her

          7  attendance today.

          8                 Mr. Sam Miller, I believe this is the

          9  first time you are here in front of the Veterans'

         10  Committee, so--.

         11                 MR. MILLER:  Yes, it is.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: -- welcome.

         13  Today is your debut here in the veterans community.

         14                 MR. MILLER:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We

         16  appreciate your time. We are going to ask you to

         17  present your testimony, who you are, the position

         18  you hold in the Administration, and please begin.

         19                 MR. MILLER:  Sure, okay, good

         20  afternoon Chairman Monserrate and members of the

         21  Veterans' Affairs Committee.

         22                 I am Sam Miller, Assistant

         23  Commissioner for Communications and Customer Service

         24  at the New York City Department of Finance.  In this

         25  position, I oversee all the publications that we
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          2  mail to the City's almost one million property

          3  owners.

          4                 Thank you for inviting me to testify

          5  on behalf of Finance Commissioner Martha E. Stark.

          6                 The bill before you today would

          7  require Finance to notify homeowners each year about

          8  property tax exemptions available for veterans,

          9  seniors and people with disabilities, as well as the

         10  School Tax Relief, or STAR, exemption, which as you

         11  know, is available to all owners who use their home

         12  as their primary residence.

         13                 We support this bill because we want

         14  every eligible owner to take advantage of benefits

         15  to which they are entitled.

         16                 I should point out that Finance

         17  already notifies owners of available exemptions.  In

         18  fact, under Commissioner Stark's leadership, we have

         19  made our property tax bills and notices much easier

         20  to read and more informative.

         21                 In December 2004, we replaced our

         22  annual property tax bill with a quarterly statement

         23  of account, which looks like a bank statement and

         24  shows very clearly what the owner owes, what

         25  exemptions he or she has, and how to receive
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          2  customer assistance. These quarterly notices are

          3  mailed to all homeowners for four times a year, even

          4  to the two- thirds of all homeowners who pay taxes

          5  through a bank or mortgage servicing company.  So

          6  even if your bank is paying on your behalf, you

          7  still receive those notices four times a year.

          8                 We also updated our annual notice of

          9  property value, which is mailed to all homeowners

         10  every year on January 15, with the publication of

         11  the tentative assessment roll.  In the brochure that

         12  accompanies this mailing, we publicize the exemption

         13  programs named in the bill.  I have distributed the

         14  brochure, along with copies of my testimony.

         15                 However notwithstanding all that we

         16  have done, we could always do more, and it will not

         17  be difficult for us to edit our annual mailings and

         18  more prominently include the brief description of

         19  each of these exemption programs that are required

         20  under this bill.

         21                 The only caveats to our support are

         22  the following:

         23                 First, because different exemption

         24  programs have different deadlines, it may make more

         25  sense for us to do the annual notification for
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          2  different exemptions at different times of the year.

          3    We look forward to working with the Council, and

          4  adding language to the bill that provides for that

          5  flexibility.

          6                 Second, while public notification of

          7  all exemptions is a worth goal, the bill's

          8  requirement that the Gold Star Parents' exemption be

          9  similarly publicized may not make as much sense.  As

         10  you probably know, this exemption which was passed

         11  by the State in 2000, essentially grants veterans'

         12  benefits, which is up to a 25 percent reduction in a

         13  home's assessed value, to the homeowning parents of

         14  a soldier killed in wartime.  However, whereas

         15  applicants in the other exemption programs number in

         16  the hundreds of thousands, in the case of STAR, to

         17  tens of thousands for many of the other exemptions,

         18  there are probably only a handful of eligible Gold

         19  Star Parents.

         20                 We believe the best way to reach

         21  these parents is by sending them a personalized

         22  letter urging them to apply if they are eligible.

         23  Clarice Joynes, the Executive Director of MOVA, has

         24  recently sent such a letter, which also included an

         25  application for the Gold Star exemption.
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          2                 We believe that this kind of targeted

          3  mailing would be more effective than a notice to a

          4  million property owners.

          5                 So, once again, I thank you for

          6  having us here today.  I appreciate the opportunity

          7  to speak to this Committee for the first time, and I

          8  will end there, and take any questions you may have.

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, and also to answer

         10  any questions about the veterans piece of the

         11  finance exemption if you have any.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         13  very much, our Sergeant- At- Arms.

         14                 Okay, so Mr. Miller, I have a couple

         15  of questions with respect to the current notice-

         16  this is the document that you have currently sent

         17  out in this form?

         18                 MR. MILLER:  That is a document- that

         19  is the notice of property value that we send every

         20  January, and you can see on the front page we

         21  mention the deadline and then on the third page, I

         22  believe, at the top of the third page, we also,

         23  which might be the back of one of your pages, I am

         24  not sure, we also mention again the exemptions, and

         25  then on our annual bill, rather the quarterly
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          2  statements, on the most recent quarterly statement

          3  we mailed in January, we also mention the March 15th

          4  deadline.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay, with

          6  respect to the Gold Star parents, how many Gold Star

          7  parents do you believe are eligible and out there?

          8                 MR. MILLER:  I will defer to you on

          9  that.

         10                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, for the Gold Star

         11  parents, just to give a little background on what is

         12  happening, we have unfortunately, through Operation

         13  Iraqi Freedom and Operation Enduring Freedom, we

         14  have in New York City in the five boroughs, we have

         15  42 families that were effected--.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Forty- two?

         17                 MS. JOYNES:  Forty- two families, but

         18  of the 42 only about 22 of them are parents of

         19  service members who were killed in action, and also

         20  I just want to bring to the Council also, when you

         21  talk about the Gold Star parent exemption, the age

         22  of our veterans in the New York City population, our

         23  World War II Veterans are approximately in their

         24  mid- to- late 80's, and our Korean War Veterans,

         25  again, they are in their mid- to- late 70's, so when
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          2  you talk about parents of veterans receiving this

          3  exemption, of course, by the age of the veterans

          4  themselves, it brings that population down to Gold

          5  Star parents, even our Vietnam Vets, they are in

          6  their mid- 50's, going onto their late 60's, and

          7  when you talk about parents who are still around to

          8  take advantage of that exemption, it does bring the

          9  numbers down.

         10                 So, we have contact, not with those

         11  parents in the past wars, but we have contact with

         12  the family members of Operation Iraqi Freedom, and

         13  we did send out notice to those families on a

         14  personal level to let them know about the Gold Star

         15  parent exemption.  And also, the Department of

         16  Finance has set aside a personal contact for the

         17  family members to reach out if they have any

         18  questions about the exemption, and also they are

         19  free to call our office if they have questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay, how do

         21  you have tracking over all the Gold Star parents?

         22                 Does the City know every Gold Star

         23  parent in the City?

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  Not every Gold Star

         25  parent.  Only the parents of the current war, of
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          2  Operation Iraqi Freedom and, unfortunately, because

          3  myself or someone from my staff, we have reached out

          4  to the family members when we are notified about the

          5  death of a servicemember killed in action.  That is

          6  how we gain that information.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  And that is

          8  provided to you by the Federal government?

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  By the family, well the

         10  notification of death of a servicemember is public

         11  information through the Department of Defense, and

         12  you can get that information through

         13  WWW.DefenseLink.Mil.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Is that

         15  DefenseLink?

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  DefenseLink.Mil, Yes.

         17  Anytime a servicemember is killed in action, the

         18  Department of Defense, after the family has been

         19  notified, they have to wait 24 to 48 hours to notify

         20  the public about the death of a servicemember, and

         21  then we reach out to the particular department of

         22  service to reach out to that family member and offer

         23  any kind of assistance that we can to the families.

         24                 We also work with the New York State

         25  Division of Veterans' Affairs, and with the U. S.
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          2  Department of Veterans' Affairs in making sure that

          3  the families know about any assistance that is due

          4  to them, and we usually wait a sufficient amount of

          5  time before we contact them because, of course,

          6  being notified that you have lost a servicemember or

          7  a family member in a war, you do not want to have to

          8  approach the family right at the wake or funeral to

          9  let them know.  But, we do reach out to them after,

         10  and that is how we keep track.  And we do not share

         11  that information with the public because most of the

         12  families do not like to have their personal

         13  information put out to the public, but from time to

         14  time, they will call our office or we will reach out

         15  to them and just see how they are doing.  So, that

         16  is how we keep track of them.  But their personal

         17  information like their phone numbers, addresses, and

         18  things like that, that is not public information.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay, but

         20  how about Persian Gulf era, 1990- 91, do you have

         21  all of those names also?

         22                 MS. JOYNES:  No, I do not.  But

         23  Persian Gulf and Persian Gulf 1, I was working in

         24  the office of Veterans' Affairs at that time, and we

         25  did not keep track back then of the family members
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          2  who- their names, addresses and that type of thing.

          3  There was an outreach at the time, then Mayor

          4  Dinkins had a family dinner for the servicemembers,

          5  their families--

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

          7                 MS. JOYNES: -- that were killed in

          8  action, and there was about 13 of them, if I

          9  remember correctly at the time, but no, we do not

         10  have contact--.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I got you, I

         12  guess what I am trying- I also want to recognize

         13  that we have been joined by Council Member Lewis

         14  Fidler, our Assistant Majority Leader, thank you,

         15  Council Member Fidler for being here.

         16                 I guess my concern regarding your

         17  testimony, Mr. Miller, with respect to the Gold Star

         18  parents, is that we have data that is recent.  There

         19  were a lot of other engagements that the United

         20  States was involved in, that is not that long ago,

         21  Panama, you had the Persian Gulf Crisis of`90-`91,

         22  we had other servicemembers in Somalia and Africa,

         23  and Grenada, in the Invasion of Grenada, then there

         24  is all the servicemembers who die in the line of

         25  duty during training exercises, sometimes here in
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          2  the United States in bases, or in bases over seas or

          3  during maneuvers oversees, the U.S.S. Cole was

          4  subjected to a terrorist attack and servicemembers

          5  died there, to the extent that there might be

          6  veterans and their families out there that are not

          7  in a current data base, and are not accessible.  And

          8  in the absence of having that information, the only

          9  way probably, to reach them is to do- to include

         10  them in this mass mailing so as to ensure that no

         11  ghosts are apparent that lost their children in

         12  service to this Nation, is not made aware of this

         13  program availability.

         14                 How would you respond to that?

         15                 MR. MILLER:  We can consider that,

         16  absolutely.  I mean, I think part of it is my

         17  ignorance of the population, and we can certainly

         18  work more closely with Director Joynes' office to

         19  try to identify because I do think that would be the

         20  best way, particularly given their situation, it is

         21  a nice way to reach out to them on a personal level.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I can

         23  definitely appreciate that the number in comparison

         24  is probably small, but I would hate to think that

         25  this benefit was not afforded to those who really
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          2  deserve it, and if it requires us adding another

          3  sentence into a form, I think that it would be best

          4  served if the City does that.

          5                 MS. JOYNES:  And also, Council Member

          6  Monserrate, also just to put out there, we can do

          7  the research to get that information but also, keep

          8  in mind, that the way the Gold Star parent exemption

          9  works, if I am not mistaken, that it is open to

         10  combat deaths only, at this time, or is it just all

         11  military related deaths?

         12                 MR. MILLER:  I will double check.

         13                 MS. JOYNES:  We could check on that,

         14  we will check on that because I believe from what I

         15  have read from- about that, it is open to

         16  servicemembers- parents of servicemembers who were

         17  killed in a combat action.

         18                 So that, when you are talking about

         19  these other periods of service, a parent may not be

         20  eligible, but we will be working with Finance to do

         21  the research on that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Understood.

         23                 MS. JOYNES:  But just to give you an

         24  example, we do reach out and do the research on that

         25  but the other thing is with the same legislation,
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          2  when you talk about outreach to the veterans

          3  community, we also worked with Finance to put on the

          4  paycheck stubs for City employees, on the March 10th

          5  paycheck stub, about the veterans to call 311 about

          6  the veterans tax exemption.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I

          8  understand.

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  So, we have definitely

         10  been working on that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Perhaps not

         12  written into the legislation but nonetheless, it

         13  might be good if something like this was prepared in

         14  flyer form, and we, individual members of the

         15  Council can ensure that it is distributed amongst

         16  our constituents.

         17                 MR. MILLER:  Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Sometimes,

         19  unfortunately, individuals do not read the whole

         20  length of the notice that you send them, and it is

         21  to their detriment because they cannot

         22  apply, but maybe if there was a flyer and it was

         23  distributed amongst--.

         24                 MR. MILLER:  Sure, right.  We would

         25  be happy to do that, and we as you know, we work
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          2  with you and your colleagues to attend civic

          3  meetings in communities, and we always talk about

          4  exemptions that are available, and we bring

          5  material.  We can bring a flyer, we could bring the

          6  applications, we can certainly work with you on

          7  that, absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 Okay, there are no questions on this

         11  bill, so we are going to accept testimony now from

         12  the Executive Director, Clarice Joynes regarding

         13  Intro. 233.

         14                 MS. JOYNES:  Good afternoon everyone.

         15                 Chairman Monserrate and Council

         16  Members Avella, James and Nelson, and also I would

         17  like to extend greetings to the newest member of the

         18  Committee, Council Member Fidler.

         19                 It is a pleasure to appear before the

         20  New York City Committee on veterans issues.

         21                 I have been reappointed by Mayor

         22  Michael Bloomberg as the Executive Director of

         23  Veterans' Affairs, and I look forward to continuing

         24  to serve the veteran and military community of New

         25  York City.
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          2                 In that regard, Introduction Number

          3  233, which will give supportive change to the

          4  Veterans' Advisory Board, is welcome and supported

          5  by Mayor Bloomberg and myself.

          6                 We look forward to having this

          7  legislation in effect which will improve the

          8  Veterans' Advisory Board's capacity to advise the

          9  Executive Director of the Mayor's Office of

         10  Veterans' Affairs on veterans' issues.

         11                 The Veterans Advisory Board is an

         12  advisory body and its input on what is happening in

         13  the veteran and military community in New York City

         14  is a valuable asset to the Executive Director of the

         15  Mayor's Office of Veterans's Affairs and is

         16  fulfilling its mandate.

         17                 Thank you for giving me the

         18  opportunity to testify before you, regarding this

         19  Introduction.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         21  much.

         22                 I really do not have any questions.

         23                 MS. JOYNES:  Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Other than I

         25  really appreciate the support of the Administration
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          2  with respect to the changes that I believe will make

          3  the Advisory Board a much more effective body, and

          4  this is now our second hearing with respect to this

          5  bill, even though it has been re- introduced, and

          6  hopefully at the next hearing we will putting it to

          7  a vote, finally voting it out.

          8                 I will take questions from Council

          9  Member Nelson, and then Council Member Fidler.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 Hi Ms. Joynes, good to see you.

         13                 MS. JOYNES:  Good afternoon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  As you know,

         15  I formulated the Veterans' Advisory Board to make

         16  sure that there were veterans on it.

         17                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And it is

         19  just a unique thought, you know?  Because I could be

         20  wrong, it is anecdotal, but I always felt that

         21  veterans particularly cared more about the issue,

         22  than say, the general population.  I hope I an not

         23  right, it is just a feeling.

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  Well, we have--.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  You might be
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          2  right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And I am glad

          4  that the Chair saw fit to tighten it up, the

          5  meetings should be taking place more often, and it

          6  had to be at least one member from every borough.  But

          7  I have just one question that I was confused about,

          8  you said there were 42 Gold Star parents or

          9  something, but there were really only 22, why is

         10  that?

         11                 MS. JOYNES:  No, not 42 Gold Star

         12  parents.  Forty two families that had servicemembers

         13  who were killed in action, and of those 42 families,

         14  about 22 of them are parents.  The others are either

         15  wives or siblings, so they are not parents and they

         16  are not able to take advantage of the exemption as

         17  it reads at the moment.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Oh, I see and

         19  I appreciate you clarifying that for me.

         20                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, it is

         22  good to see you.

         23                 MS. JOYNES:  Okay, yes you too.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         25  and thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 MS. JOYNES:  And I also just want to

          3  point out to the Council, that next Wednesday, on

          4  the 29th, we are having a woman veterans' outreach

          5  in honor of Woman's History Month at Veterans'

          6  Memorial Hall on our floor, so we invite all the

          7  woman veterans in New York City to come out to that,

          8  and if you could let everybody know in your district

          9  that we are going to have representatives from all

         10  of the- from the U.S. Department of Veterans'

         11  Affairs, New York State Division of Veterans'

         12  Affairs, the outreach centers, and different

         13  community organizations and city organizations for

         14  woman veterans' outreach.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Great, you

         16  will be sending a fax or a relay?

         17                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, we can send- we

         18  definitely will.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I just want

         20  to apologize, I have to leave soon.  I just was

         21  notified about the meeting about 48 hours ago, and I

         22  had a Friday that was already booked up by my office

         23  in the afternoon.  I do not want to be rude there

         24  either.

         25                 MS. JOYNES:  That I can understand.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So, thank

          3  you.

          4                 MS. JOYNES:  Thank you very much.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you,

          8  Council Member Nelson, and like a good soldier, I am

          9  glad that you responded to the call, even on such

         10  short notice.

         11                 We have one more question from

         12  Council Member Fidler.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  It is not a

         14  question, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 In tribute to this eclectical moment

         16  when Hiram Monserrate and Mike Bloomberg were

         17  together, I would like to be added as co- sponsor of

         18  this bill.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Oh, there is

         20  a couple of them, not too many but--.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, it is

         22  my first experience here, so I would like to be

         23  added as a co- sponsor of this bill.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         25  very much.  The Deputy will add you in and looking
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          2  forward to working with you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you,

          5  Executive Director Joynes.

          6                 MS. JOYNES:  You are very welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I am going

          8  to call up the next three in a panel.  I am going to

          9  remind those who are testifying that the testimony

         10  is limited to two minutes.

         11                 I am going to call Ralph Di Toro who

         12  is a very vibrant individual for the veterans

         13  community, Vince Mc Gowan, and W. Alexander Pas.

         14                 Gentlemen, please speak clearly,

         15  loudly into the mic, identifying yourselves, the

         16  organization your represent, and your position on

         17  either one of these bills, 233 or 232, and we will

         18  begin with Mr. Di Toro.

         19                 MR. DI TORO:  Yes, good afternoon,

         20  and again I would like to thank the Committee for

         21  having this here meeting today.

         22                 In reference to the first bill, I had

         23  a few questions, and being a co- op owner for the

         24  last fifteen years, I have never received anything

         25  in the mail from the City Finance Department about
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          2  what my property is worth, what exemptions are

          3  there.  I had to find this out on my own.

          4                 So, I do not know if they send it out

          5  quarterly, do they send it out also to the co- op

          6  people, the people that own co- op's?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We are going

          8  to look into that.  Okay, we will get back to you on

          9  that but you are--.

         10                 MR. DI TORO:  I am in full support of

         11  the bill.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We are going

         13  to try to answer your question but we want to hear

         14  your testimony.

         15                 MR. DI TORO:  I am in full support of

         16  the bill.  I think it is gives the veteran and

         17  everybody else that is included, all the people with

         18  disabilities, the opportunity to take advantage of

         19  what is out there but the way to do it is to have

         20  these people contacted, and again, I think we fall

         21  short in contacting people. We do not have master

         22  lists of veterans, we do not have master lists of

         23  anybody.  So people really do not know.  We have to

         24  get the message out to them.  That is my problem

         25  when you propose a bill.  The bill is good, and like
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          2  you said, you want to fill this room with veterans,

          3  well, the only way you are going to fill this room

          4  with veterans is if we notify the veterans that

          5  there is something coming up.  It has never been

          6  done.

          7                 I think in my first testimony I said

          8  get a master list from the database from the

          9  Department of Defense, this way we know who the

         10  veterans are in New York City when there is

         11  something going down that needs to be represented by

         12  the veterans in force, a notification over the

         13  airwaves, or something that can go out there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right, any

         15  other testimony Ralph?

         16                 MR. DI TORO:  No, based on that, no.

         17  No there is no other testimony on that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  With respect

         19  to the co-op portion, that notification is sent to

         20  Board reps.  There might be some type of mechanism

         21  that includes, at least, partial exemptions, maybe

         22  they have to take into account individual veterans

         23  and others who have disabilities.  We are going to

         24  look into that.

         25                 MR. DI TORO:  There are three areas
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          2  with veterans. There is the veteran, then there is

          3  the disability veteran, and then there is the combat

          4  veteran.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  And Gold

          6  Star parents.

          7                 MR. DI TORO:  And Gold Star parents.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

          9                 MR. DI TORO:  There are four.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  So, we are

         11  going to look into that.

         12                 MR. DI TORO:  Okay, and a suggestion

         13  on the Gold Star parents.  I believe, why couldn't

         14  it be extended to wives, the same benefits that you

         15  are going to afford the parent?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DI TORO:  I do not know

         17  that that is the case.  I think it would be

         18  automatic.

         19                 MR. DI TORO:  I do not know if it is

         20  extended to the wives.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  It is not?

         22                 MR. DI TORO:  I am not sure of that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  It sounds

         24  like that might be the next bill or reso.  But, we

         25  will look into that.
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          2                 MR. DI TORO:  Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay,

          4  Council Member Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I have to put

          6  my lawyer hat on, and explain that real property tax

          7  bills for cooperatives go to the cooperative

          8  building as a whole, not to the individual

          9  cooperator, and then the building factors the tax

         10  bill together with their various other costs, like

         11  the underlying mortgage on the building into the

         12  monthly maintenance charge, which goes towards

         13  paying a cooperators monthly maintenance bill, and

         14  it also goes towards the taxes.  If you wanted to

         15  extend this kind of relief to cooperators, there

         16  would have to be some very specific targeted rebate.

         17    That is what would have to happen, and I think

         18  that is probably a good idea.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Before I give

         21  up the microphone, I would also like to be added to

         22  this bill too.  I did not realize we had both of

         23  them in front of us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         25  very much Council Member Fidler.
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          2                 Okay, we are going to move on.

          3                 The Committee hears you loud and

          4  clear about notification.  We are going to ensure

          5  that for the next hearing there is going to be a

          6  very large notification.

          7                 We want our veterans to understand

          8  and know that they have a voice in these Chambers,

          9  and we want them to participate, and the next

         10  hearing, we will do our part, and we hope that all

         11  the advocates and veterans alike will do their part

         12  in helping us get the word out.

         13                 I know that this will be on one of my

         14  favorite channels, the City channel 74, which I

         15  watch believe it or not, almost every night.  So, no

         16  one heard that Council Member Fidler, so, helping us

         17  get the word out.

         18                 Vince.

         19                 MR. MC GOWAN:  Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman for convening this meeting, and for all

         21  your work last year, and welcome to the new members

         22  of the City Council Committee, and again, thank you

         23  for the work last year.  We see great hopes for the

         24  future and continuing focusing on our veterans

         25  community and our needs going forward.
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          2                 My name is Vince Mc Gowan.  I am here

          3  as a member of the Veterans' Advisory Board.  I am

          4  an original member, and I am the President of the

          5  United War Veterans Council of New York County, and

          6  we are here to lend our support to the Bill 233 and

          7  232.

          8                 The United War Veterans Council

          9  supports the proposed changes to the New York City

         10  Charter in relation to the Veterans' Advisory Board,

         11  specifically, considering services and conflicts

         12  involving our U.S. Armed Forces when making

         13  appointments. That is really an important

         14  consideration, and thank you for ensuring that, and

         15  Mr. Nelson for chiming in on it.

         16                 We support removal for cause of any

         17  member by a sponsor or her sponsor.  We support the

         18  Advisory Board members electing by a majority vote,

         19  one member to serve as a chairperson, and one member

         20  to serve as the vice- chairperson for one- year

         21  terms, and we support meetings, at least, quarterly

         22  with records kept and the ability to determine its

         23  own rules and procedures, and to submit annual

         24  reports to the City Council, and to the Mayor's

         25  Office.
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          2                 We would recommend in addition to

          3  this, that the Council consider putting to it a

          4  budget, so that the Advisory Board members could

          5  meet the expenses of meetings.

          6                 Many of the conversations that we

          7  have had in the past was to try to have our meeting

          8  in each of the different boroughs, and that is not

          9  always easy for everyone, that way, bringing the

         10  City together.  So, if that were to be something

         11  that would happen, we would certainly submit the

         12  budget prior to using it, and secondly, we support

         13  the upgrading of the notice sent for residential

         14  property owners mailed to owners of Class I and II

         15  properties.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:   Thank you.

         18                 Please begin.

         19                 MR. PAS:  Good afternoon.  My name is

         20  W. Alexander Pas.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank

         22  you honorable committee members.

         23                 My name is Alexander Pas.  I am an

         24  accredited service rep. With the Catholic War

         25  Veterans.  I am also a lifetime member of the
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          2  Vietnam Veterans Manhattan Chapter, and the

          3  advocate, and also now, part of the Board of

          4  Directors for the Brooklyn Kings County Hispanic

          5  Chamber of Commerce, as their director for

          6  government procurement and Veteran Business

          7  Advocate.

          8                 I am here in favor of both 232 and

          9  233.  I believe it is a great initiative that the

         10  Veterans' Committee has taken this as an issue to

         11  honor- a proud position for our veterans and our

         12  Gold Star mothers.

         13                 My question probably would be, are

         14  widows or widowers that may be homeowners part of

         15  this also?

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

         17  Unintelligible.

         18                 Basically, that is it.  I stand in

         19  support of these two bills.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 I have just been informed of the

         23  following, if a servicemember applied for a veterans

         24  exemption or reduction discount, whatever

         25  terminology you want to use, before he died in
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          2  action, or was killed in action, then the spouse

          3  would automatically be eligible.  But, if they had

          4  not applied for it, then they would not be eligible,

          5  which I think needs to be changed, so we will be

          6  drafting a resolution calling upon the State

          7  government to do exactly that, and to perhaps,

          8  expand the definition of Gold Star parents, maybe to

          9  be changed to Gold Star survivors, which is

         10  something that I think would be a better way to

         11  ensure that the protections and coverages are made

         12  available to all veterans and their survivors.

         13                 Having said that, that would be a

         14  state action, and our resolution would only be

         15  advisory message to the state, we will be

         16  communicating that with them.

         17                 I want to thank the three of you for

         18  your testimony, and I expect to see you all back on

         19  the 28th at one o'clock with a bus load of veterans

         20  each.

         21                 MR. PAS:  We will bring all of our

         22  friends.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 We are going to call Joe Bello, Paul
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          2  Schubert, and James Reilly.

          3                 Please begin, name, organization,

          4  title and your position on the bills, and your

          5  testimonies.  Reminding everyone that there is two

          6  minutes of testimony.

          7                 MR. BELLO:  Good afternoon, my name

          8  is Joe Bello. I am here as a veterans advocate in

          9  support of 232 and 233.

         10                 I have no comments for Intro. 232.  I

         11  support it wholeheartedly.

         12                 My comments are for 233.  One of the

         13  things that we discussed last year, when it was

         14  Intro. 688- A, was the fact that the three- year

         15  terms for both the Mayor's appointees and the

         16  Speaker's appointees had expired.  Hence, when I was

         17  looking at this it says,`in the event of a vacancy

         18  on the Advisory Board, during the term of office, a

         19  member by reason of removal, death, resignation,

         20  shall be chosen in the same manner as the original

         21  appointment.'

         22                 My fear is that we will have, if a

         23  removal comes along, that the Speaker nor the Mayor

         24  will move on making a new appointment to the Board,

         25  so I would like to see if at all possible at the end
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          2  of that sentence,`as the original appointment,' I

          3  would like to see, since the bill says that they are

          4  to meet quarterly, I would like to see it point,`as

          5  a new appointment within 60 days, or within one

          6  quarter'.  I think that that would kind of,

          7  hopefully, push along the Speaker and the Mayor to

          8  make a new appointment to the Board in case an

          9  appointment is removed.

         10                 So, that is the only issue that I had

         11  with the Intro.  It looks good, and thank you for

         12  allowing me to testify today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         14  very much for your testimony, and we have taken note

         15  of your remarks, and we will be reviewing that.

         16                 Please, Sir.

         17                 MR. SCHUBERT:  My name is Paul

         18  Schubert.  I have been an advocate for veterans'

         19  right since about 1995, where I met Joe Caswon

         20  (phonetic), who successfully fought the City of New

         21  York to enable all disabled veterans to work on the

         22  streets of New York City in peace.

         23                 Since then, I went to Albany in 2004,

         24  when the law was about to sunset, and to allow all

         25  disabled veterans to be able to work back in Midtown
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          2  safety.

          3                 Since then, I have been lobbying for

          4  a very fair Peddle Law for veterans and non-

          5  veterans.  I have brought some visual displays with

          6  me, and I believe there is room for all street

          7  peddlers in New York City to work in peace and

          8  harmony, but I have been opposed by this by the

          9  BID's, who have caused the street lighting in New

         10  York City to be made 50 percent less than this. All

         11  the avenues are very dark, they have also made

         12  obstructions, flower planters, news stand boxes, and

         13  bicycle racks wherever they can to obstruct veterans

         14  from working.

         15                 They also- Grand Central Partnership,

         16  caused the 17th Precinct to act in an abusive manner

         17  towards veterans.  This matter was investigated by

         18  Internal Affairs, and Captain Hagen (phonetic) lost

         19  command of his precinct.

         20                 Fourteenth Street BID is also been

         21  harassing veterans on 14th Street within the 6th

         22  Precinct.  This manner was dealt with by contacting

         23  Community Affairs there, but like I said, I was here

         24  to speak on behalf of disabled veterans, and I also

         25  do want to meet again with Mr. Hiram Monserrate, and
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          2  with the other members of this committee,

          3                 Again, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 MR. REILLY:  Chairman Monserrate and

          7  members of the Committee, my name is James Reilly.

          8  I am appearing as Vice President for the American

          9  Veterans for Equal Rights.

         10                 In interest of brevity, I am going to

         11  refer the Committee to my already submitted

         12  testimony of October 20th, 2005 and December 19th,

         13  2005.

         14                 I would like to welcome Council

         15  Member Fidler on board as a new member of the

         16  Committee.  He is a welcomed face.

         17                 We are happy with Intro. 233, and we

         18  are also happy that the Council has chosen to insert

         19  the language of oversight.

         20                 Also with 232, we would like to

         21  remind the Council, first, that we deeply appreciate

         22  the work of Council Member Monserrate, our Chairman,

         23  and the yeoman work of his Council staff. However,

         24  again we would like to request the inclusion of

         25  specific language prohibiting discrimination
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          2  against, and the exclusion of domestic partners, and

          3  LGBT veterans in all City and State legislation

          4  providing benefits to veterans by the City and

          5  State.

          6                 While all veterans are naturally

          7  eligible for special veteran housing, employment

          8  assistant benefits, and certain homeowner tax

          9  exemptions.  There have, nevertheless, been

         10  documented cases of discriminatory exclusion.

         11                 In New Jersey, a gay couple, living

         12  in the same home for decades, had a veterans tax

         13  exemption- if you will bear with me, please, for one

         14  half minute more.  When they registered as domestic

         15  partners, a town clerk revoked the tax exemption.

         16  They sued, and won.  But, the need for legislation

         17  to include reiteration of New York City laws

         18  prohibiting against discrimination of LGBT citizens

         19  is clear.

         20                 Again, we want to thank you for the

         21  very, very good work you have done, and request that

         22  you work a little harder for us.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Your message

         25  has been loud and clear today, and I want to thank
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          2  you and the other members of the panel because you

          3  truly, time and time again, come out to the hearings

          4  and testify, and I know early on we were concerned

          5  as to what we could do, and there are very real

          6  limitations to the City Council's Committee on

          7  Veterans' issues, but we are going to carve out a

          8  very important space in history as being an active

          9  committee in the City Council towards dealing with

         10  this, and so many of the issue that impact our

         11  veterans and their families.

         12                 So, thank you all, gentlemen.

         13                 MR. REILLY:  Thank you, Sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Any other

         15  members of the Veterans' Committee want to testify?

         16                 With that being said, I want to thank

         17  all that testified here today.

         18                 I want to thank the Administration,

         19  both the Department of Finance and MOVA for being

         20  here today.

         21                 I look forward to finalizing the

         22  final details with the Administration on both these

         23  bills, so that they can be voted out, and I want to

         24  remind everyone about the very important hearing

         25  that we will be having on April the 28th.
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          2                 To the Committee members, please come

          3  early.  We will be voting upon these two bills, and

          4  we are going to have an important hearing about a

          5  City Council Initiative for veterans, providing

          6  services on a local basis for our city residents.

          7  Again, that will be in the main Chambers, one

          8  o'clock, Friday the 28th. You are all invited.

          9                 Thank you very much, and with that we

         10  will close this hearing.

         11                 (Hearing adjourned at 1:50 P.M.)
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